NASHVILLE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING
THURSDAY, MARCH 19, 2009

ATTENDANCE - Council members present — President Roger Kelso, Vice-President Robert Kirlin,
Councilmember Charles B. King and Councilmember Arthur Omberg. Council member not present ~
Councilmember Dale Cassiday. Also in attendance — Interim Town Marshal Stephanie Loerzel, Town
Attorney James Roberts, Town Superintendent Roger Bush, Chief Administrator Phyllis Carr, Clerk-
Treasurer Brenda Young and Deputy Clerk-Treasurer Debbie Ferry.

REGULAR COUNCIL BUSINESS

1) CALL TO ORDER by President Kelso at 7:11pm.
2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3) ROLL CALL - by Clerk-Treasurer Young

4) APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Councilmember Omberg made a motion to accept the agenda as published. Councilmember King

seconded the motion. All were unanimously in favor.

5) APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES

Councilmember Omberg made a motion to approve the minutes for the February 9" 2009 Committee
meeting, February lOth, 2009 meeting, February 19" 2009 meeting, February 26“’, 2009 Executive
Session Safety Board, February 26 2009 meeting, March 5% 2009 Executive Session Safety Board
and March 12, 2009 Executive Session Safety Board as presented. Councilmember King seconded the
motion. All were unanimously in favor.

6) COMMUNICATIONS
None presented.

7) CITIZEN CONCERNS
None presented.

8) INTERIM TOWN MARSHAL - STEPHANIE LOERZEL

e Council Inquiries
Interim Town Marshal Loerzel noted she had given the Council information on the COPS grant which
is through the United States Department of Justice. This grant offers to fully fund as many officer
positions as they would apply for. The grant would pay the starting salary plus all benefits for three
years. After the three year period, they are asked to retain the officer for at least twelve months. If they
are not able to retain the officers there is an exemption process they could go through. If they are
denied the exemption process they would be barred from receiving any funds from the Justice
Department for three years. If they are approved for the exemption, it would be one year. Interim
Town Marshal Loerzel commented that she has spoken with the officers of the Police Department and
they would like to possibly apply for two positions to get them back up to a six man department. This
would offer more coverage for the town, residents and tourists.

President Kelso asked how much Interim Town Marshal Loerzel knows about the details of the
program. Interim Town Marshal Loerzel explained they have one billion dollars available in this grant




TOWN COUNCIL MEETING, MARCH 19, 2009

and she believes most all departments throughout the United States will ask for funds. The grant will
provide the funding for departments that have laid off officers or about to lay off officers or have cut
positions completely due to budget constraints. She believes they would qualify for the grant.

President Kelso asked what would happen if they applied for the grant and then decided they did not
want to do it. Interim Town Marshal Loerzel reported the information she has received does not state
when the funding would be available but she is hoping the funding would be available this year. The
application would have to be completed by April 14", 2009. She has called a grant specialist to get
some more information on the grant details.

Vice-President Kirlin and Councilmember Omberg commented they have no problem pursuing the
grant as long as they all know the rules going in. President Kelso agreed but budget wise they need a
plan. Interim Town Marshal Loerzel noted to be eligible for the grant they need to have a retention

plan.

Council thanked Interim Town Marshal Loerzel for the information. She commented that she had help
from the other officers and did not do this on her own.

Interim Town Marshal Loerzel asked if they can look forward to acquiring anything on the equipment
list that was submitted and they also mentioned pay raises and wondered if that had been considered.
Vice-President Kirlin advised they are still discussing pay raises internally. Councilmember Omberg
suggested he, Vice-President Kirlin, Clerk-Treasurer Young and Interim Town Marshal Loerzel meet to
look over the budget and find where they can pull resources and look at the grant and how it might
work. President Kelso clarified that they are still looking at pay raises but not sure how they would be
able to do so at this time.

Council asked Interim Town Marshal Loerzel to review the list of equipment needs and prioritize them.
She noted the officers have already been fitted for the vests but have not ordered them yet. Clerk-
Treasurer Young advised they can order the vests out of the LOIT funds. Asked what is next on the
priority list Interim Town Marshal Loerzel commented pay raises would be the next priority. She is
afraid they will lose officers to other departments due to pay. President Kelso explained the LOIT
funds have strings attached to them and they are only able to spend this money on equipment but not
salaries. Interim Town Marshal Loerzel commented the next equipment need would be cars and in-car
cameras.

Councilmember Omberg suggested they have another meeting to discuss costs of equipment needs and
budget issues. Council scheduled the meeting for March 26™, 2009 at 7pm. Council thanked Interim
Town Marshal Loerzel for stepping in at this time.

NEW BUSINESS

1) AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A RAINY DAY FUND

Clerk-Treasurer Young explained the State had decided that some of the tax allotment monies the Town
recelves must go into a Rainy Day fund therefore the Council must pass an ordinance creating a Rainy
Day fund. They currently have $8,599.67 in the Rainy Day fund at this time but the Council has to
decide how to use the money in this fund. Discussion.

Town Attorney Roberts will review the statutes and report to the Council as to how they may use the
Rainy Day Fund. Vice-President Kirlin made a motion to table the ordinance. Councilmember
Omberg seconded the motion. All were unanimously in favor.

2




TOWN COUNCIL MEETING, MARCH 19, 2009

2) ANY OTHER NEW BUSINESS THAT MAY COME BEFORE THE COUNCIL
Chief Administrator Carr reported they have hired a new employee, Jason Smith. Council welcomed

Mr. Smith.

Clerk-Treasurer Young presented a Census 2010 proclamation. President Kelso explained that he and
Clerk-Treasurer Young met with an individual who is basically a Federal spearhead for the census. The
Council has been asked to execute a partnership agreement which basically says the town will work
with the census to insure an accurate count. President Kelso noted they have been asked to form a
Complete Count Committee and he would like to nominate Vice-President Kirlin to be the Town of

Nashville’s chairman.

Councilmember Omberg made a motion to accept Mr. Kirlin as the Town’s representative for the
census. Councilmember King offered to assist Vice-President Kirlin. Vice-President Kirlin agreed to
be the Town’s representative. Councilmember King seconded the motion. All were unanimously in
favor.

Councilmember King made a motion to approve President Kelso signing the Census Partnership
Proclamation. Councilmember Omberg seconded the motion. All were unanimously in favor.

OLD BUSINESS

1) PARKING AND PUBLIC FACILITIES UPDATE

Commission President Lamond Martin informed the Council that the Commission held a brief meeting
this month in which they discussed their financial situation, discussed and updated on the Historical
Society project. They also talked about the problems they are having with vandalism in the restrooms
at Old School Way. Commission President Martin reported they revisited the idea of having cameras in
this area. They would like to put the cameras up in the parking lot facing the restroom doors. Chief
Administrator Carr commented the vandalism has gotten worse.

Vice-President Kirlin noted he originally was against the idea of cameras but now he would probably
support it. President Kelso would like the Commission to talk to the Chamber and see what their
feedback is regarding the idea of cameras in the parking lots. Discussion.

Interim Town Marshal Loerzel knows the vandalism is still a problem in this area and the Police
Department is doing every thing they can to stop it but unfortunately it is still happening. They are
doing foot patrol several times a day.

President Kelso asked what the cost of the damage has been thus far. Chief Administrator Carr
reported in two weeks she had three phone calls; one had penciled graffiti all over, another call about
someone using the floor as a toilet and the last call was about marijuana found in the restroom.
President Kelso commented those items would cost less than a thousand dollars to repair and does it
really call for cameras in this area? Discussion. Commission President Martin is to come back to
Council after talking with the Chamber.

Councilmember King asked if there are funds available to seal coat the Washington Street lot this year.
Commission President Martin answered yes they would probably do it this year. Councilmember King
asked that they do a good job on filling the cracks with the weeds in it and then seal coat it.
Councilmember King also commented that he loved the fence that was put up in this area.




TOWN COUNCIL MEETING, MARCH 19, 2009

Commission President Martin noted that he has been able to get out of town a few times recently and
the Town of Nashville has the cleanest public restrooms of any tourist town that he has been to.
President Kelso agreed with this statement and commented that the main drag streets are generally that

way 100.

2) DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMISSION REPORT

Commission President David Martin reported at the last Commission meeting they walked the Blue Elk
Crossing property and this was helpful to them as they discussed the project later in the evening. The
Commission has requested landscape plans for Mr. Alexander’s Blue Elk Crossing project.
Commission President Martin advised they had one sign come before them which the Commission
approved and they had one Certificate of Appropriateness for painting a building and this was also

approved.

Commission President Martin noted the Commission members asked what the Council is doing about
the proposed member handbook. President Kelso asked what the Commission wants them to do about
the handbook. Commission President Martin stated the Commission would like the Council’s blessing
or approval on the handbook they have created. Vice-President Kirlin suggested they put this on the
agenda for the next Town Council meeting on April 16", 2009.

Commission President Martin would like to report annually to the Council as to what work they have
done and asked Clerk-Treasurer Young to present the report to the Council. Clerk-Treasurer Young
presented the Development Review Commission’s summary report and noted that in 2008 the
Commission approved eighteen Certificate of Appropriateness applications and thirty-three sign
applications. There were also three demolition permits that were addressed. Commission President
Martin commented the report also shows they did not deny any applications.

President Kelso asked how the process is going overall. Clerk-Treasurer Young explained that she
feels the process is getting better all the time. Commission President Martin agreed and commented he
is extremely comfortable with the use of the guidelines and it has helped to take subjectivity out of the
process of approving or denying an application. Discussion.

Vice-President Kirlin noted that in regards to the presentation of plans they should go both to the
County Plan Commission as well as the Development Review Commission. Commission President
Martin explained that currently plans are submitted to the Development Review Commission then
Planning and Zoning would have to come to Town Hall to review the plans but they will make sure two
sets of plans are submitted as requested.

3) ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION REPORT

Commission Representative Suzannah Zody introduced her colleague Bill Freeman who is the County
Commissioner appointed representative to the Economic Development Commission. They then
presented a five year strategic plan for the Economic Development Commission. Commission
Representative Zody explained their five year mission has a very lofty goal that Brown County will be
top ten in the United States as a retirement community, arts and recreation businesses, the second home
market and green initiatives.

Commission Representative Zody reported that they will be a part of the next ECHO 15 Study. ECHO
I5 is the Economic Development region that is just southeast of Brown County but Brown County is
not included in the region. However they will be a part of the next study which is focusing on tourism,
hospitality, education and training. Discussion.




TOWN COUNCIL MEETING, MARCH 19, 2009

Commission Representative Freeman reminded the Council that at the beginning of the year the County
cut the Economic Development Budget down to zero. They came up with a very lean budget of
$35,000 a year and about 70% of the budget is for a full time administrator. He noted they have listed
all the tasks that can be delegated to this administrator to allow the Commissioners more time to do
their economic development work.

Councilmember Omberg asked how the meeting between the County and Economic Development
resulted regarding who would hold the purse strings of the funding. Commission Representative Zody
explained there was some semi-heated discussion because one of the County Commissioners has said
that he wants the Economic Development administrator to be managed by the County Commissioners.
Commission Representative Zody would just like a structured unbiased situation where all parties
including the Town and County are represented fairly. She reported they are going to visit
Bloomington’s Economic Development Corporation next week to see how they are structured.

Vice-President Kirlin discussed the County controlling the Economic Development Commission and
after the meeting that was held the other night, he would support trying out of having the County
controlling the commission for a year and see how it works.

RECESS
A recess was called from 8:33pm to 8:40pm.

4) UPDATE ON SEWER EXPANSION PROJECT
Town Superintendent Bush reported that Rural Development could not commit to funds at this time.
As a result the next available funding window is six months out unless some other kind of window

opens up between now and then.

Town Superintendent Bush spoke regarding the easements and they have obtained 47 easements in the
Coffey Hill area and 54 easements in the Orchard Hill area. They have about sixty percent of the
easements needed thus far. Town Superintendent Bush presented a poster of the project. Discussion of
the percentage of easements still needed. The Town will need a hundred percent of the easements in
the expansion area in order to close on the loan with Rural Development. President Kelso asked what if
one person does not want to give an easement to the Town and they are not needed for the construction,
what will happen. Town Superintendent Bush explained if they are on the outer edge of the expansion
area and they are not needed to go down a road then they can be cut out of a project. President Kelso
asked what if they are in the middle of the line and did not want to be a part of the sewer expansion.
Town Superintendent Bush was unsure. President Kelso explained that what they would do would be
to complete the sewer expansion and those residents that refused to hook up during that process, the
Town would invoke the ordinances that state if a home or business is within so many feet of the sewer
line you will be required to hook-on or you may not be allowed to occupy the property. Discussion.
Council told Town Superintendent Bush to keep up the good work of trying to obtain a hundred percent
of the easements. Council asked Town Superintendent Bush to pick a drop dead date and at that point
if they do not have enough participation they will no longer go forward on this project for those people.
Council noted they appreciate all the time Town Administration has put into this project.

Discussion of stimulus funds becoming available. Town Superintendent Bush noted he submitted the
PER to SRF last week and they asked if the Town would be ready by June 2009 to bid and he told them
no. They still need to have engineering and permitting and there is no way that they could get those
things that quickly. Council then suggested making the drop dead date for the easements to be no
longer than four months from today.




TOWN COUNCIL MEETING, MARCH 19, 2009

5) SEWER EXTENSION TO ABBEY INN SR46W - ANDY SZAKALY
Mr. Szakaly commented that he is very impressed with Council and Town Superintendent Bush’s work
and efforts that he will sign an easement for the Orchard Hill Motel.

Mr. Szakaly noted that Town Superintendent Bush has done a wonderful Jjob putting together a
proposed route that would be required to meet the legal requirements. The next step would be for Mr.
Szakaly to have a meeting with the other property owners along the route and see if they would like to
be a part of the process.

6) ANY OTHER UNFINISHED BUSINESS OR COMMENTS THAT MAY COME BEFORE
THE COUNCIL

Town Superintendent Bush noted they need to consider signing the water tank painting contract.

Councilmember Omberg made a motion to allow President Kelso to sign the water tank painting

contract. Councilmember King seconded the motion. All were unanimously in favor. Town

Superintendent Bush advised as soon as the ambient temperature comes up he will issue a notice to

proceed.

REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS
1) TOWN SUPERINTENDENT - ROGER BUSH

CHIEF ADMINISTRATOR - PHYLLIS CARR

A. Kelley Hill Water Main Extension

Town Superintendent Bush explained the last stumbling block on this project was financing. They have
held a financing committee meeting and from that meeting, Vice-President Kirlin was going to go to the
bank and see if the bank would allow them to use their line of credit to pay for the project. Vice-
President Kirlin said this is a done deal. Clerk-Treasurer Young explained that Vice-President Kirlin
had talked to the bank and she then sent a letter as a formal request. However, the Council must make a
motion to approve this action.

Councilmember King made a motion to appropriate $57,000 from the Touch Pad project and apply it to
the Kelley Hill project. Vice-President Kirlin seconded the motion. Councilmember Omberg asked
about the water pressure at Kelley Hill. Town Superintendent Bush reported that at this point they have
to have the money, then it goes to engineering and then they draw up the final plans and submit them to
IDEM. All were unanimously in favor of the motion.

Town Superintendent Bush explained part of solving the pressure problem will be to install the booster
station. Councilmember Omberg asked if there will be a tap on fee for those hooking onto the
extension. President Kelso clearly stated the Town will not finance the main extension on their own.

Discussion.

One resident asked about the time line for construction and when they will find out about costs of
hooking onto the main. Vice-President Kirlin asked if the Town had a standard hook-on fee. Clerk-
Treasurer Young advised that they do have a standard fee. Discussion. Town Superintendent Bush
ventured that it would take about seven months to start construction of the line. President Kelso
directed Town Superintendent Bush to talk to the engineers tomorrow and tell them they need to have
the design done in thirty days. Town Superintendent Bush explained the main extension has been
engineered the only thing left to be engineered is the booster station. Discussion. President Kelso
asked Town Superintendent Bush to follow the way they did the Yellowwood water main extension.




